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The terrain in this section of south-central Oklahoma is pretty well 
identified by the network of streams that drains it. Clear Boggy Creek 
runs about a mile east of Old Boggy Depot. The Clear, Muddy, and North 
Boggy streams seem to have been given their names by early French traders 
who called them Vazzures (vaseuse, miry or boggy). Americans adopted the 
translation probably about the time of the exploratory expedition made in 
1805 by Dr. John Sibley. He wrote in his report: "...we arrived at the 
mouth of the Vazzures, or Boggy River ..." The word "Depot" was added 
when the Chickasaws emigrated from the East and were paid annuities here 
(cf. No. 8).

Fertile land in the bottom^of the Boggy and the Blue gave the 
Chickasaws a certain agricultural prosperity soon after their arrival in 
the late 1830s. Newcomers had soon erected a gristmill and a sawmill on 
the Boggy. By 1847 the agent was reporting that the Chickasaws were 
"improving every year in their habits of industry." Produce from their 
farms combined with trade generated by the network of military and 
civilian trails that met at Boggy Depot to make the town a lively commer- 
ciaircenter. Several large trading operations were maintained there. 
And the Civil War added yet another element of prosperity to the area. 
Boggy served as the Confederate's) major commissary depot in Indian Terri­ 
tory throughout the conflict.

During its three decades of prosperity the town acquired a brick 
church, several large commercial buildings, and a number of substantial 
homes \ including the handsome two-story house owned by Rev. Alien Wright.*

Depot dwindled rapidly. When fire destroyed the Rev. Wright home in 1952 
the town was reduced to barely-visible street outlines, tree-choked found­ 
ations, abandoned wells and cement cisterns...and its old cemetery. The 
area is now included in a state memorial park. Markers indicate the 
location of many of the once important buildings and institutions.

And there is still a flagpole to be sure. But it would be difficult 
indeed to recreate the scene of a century ago when Indian troops, loyal 
to the Confederacy, were in the habit of galloping at high speed around 
Stars and Bars, whoopjjag^and yelling and singing their Choctaw war songs. 
Boggy Depot todayx^s- ̂ ie'^^eaceful.. .and, very often, completely deserted 
to her memories.'bfearly-day i^ortance.

Iflfaen the M-K-T by-passed the town on the east, in 18?2, and New Boggy 
Depot to the south won the post office, Old Boggy
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

For more than three decades -- from 1837 when Cyrus Harris, after­ 
wards governor of the Chickasaw Nation, built the first Itrg" cabin on the 
site, to 1872 when the Missouri, Kansas and Texas Railroad appeared -- 
Boggy Depot was one ofjthe most important settleiriejrit_s._in Indian Territory. 
Though its last significant structure, the imposing home of Rev. Alien 
Wright, was destroyed by fire March 28, 1952, reducing the site to a 
state historical park containing the old cemetery and informational signs 
noting now vanished buildings and institutions, Boggy Depot deserves the 
protection of National Register status for its many contributions to the 
development of Oklahoma and her people, Indian and white alike.

The removal of the: Chickasaws from the East to Oklahoma began in 
1837. Most of the emigrants first encamped near Fort Coffee, just up the 
Arkansas River from Fort Smith. Then as a road was constructed westward 
across the Choctaw Nation they moved on to the land they had purchased 
there from the Choctaws in what is now south-central Oklahoma. The 
largest Chickasaw settlement was along the Boggy and Blue Rivers. A 
depot for the issuance of their supplies was located here in 1838. It 
was known as Boggy Depot, or "the Depot on >J^g$j lT"a'n4 it was soon a 
bustling community. Corn was shipped by^^jber up the.'Ifed and Boggy Rivers 
to within 30 miles of the new depot. B^B^c.aa^lgKwere d^fven directly 
from Arkansas. By 1841 the commissioner' of^&cll^ah affairs, was reporting 
that Saffarans & Lewis and Berthelet Hi.auL4f^/C^ , Jjocal .merchants, had 
a large stock of commodities that included'^^^Lank^'tSy domestics, calicoes, 
with various other dry goods, sugar, coffees:ax^*?^oesV7C^hains, augurs...'

Some of the newly arrived Indians, (3^j|k^j.w_.^1,;^ll as Choctaw, 
were relatively wealthy. They brought therl^^|.av^^-^ith them from the 
Southeast and the area was soon producing a surplus of corn and other 
products. Trade increased greatly in 1846 when the great surge of white 
settlement of Texas got under way. Emigration through Boggy Depot 
increased again in 1849 when the Gold Rush to California began. A post 
office was established Nov. 5, 1849, with William R. Guy, proprietor of 
the Boggy Depot hotel, as postmaster. The office was the mail connection 
for nearby Fort Washita (established in 1842 to protect the Chickasaws 
from the more war-like Plains Indians to the West) and provided postal 
service for much of the surrounding region.
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No. 8. Significance

Experience in their homelands with the Natchez Trace (established in 
1802) had given the Choctaws and Chickasaws an appreciation of the importance 
of roads. Ioe>^^ Rod and tne
military road from Fort Smith (extended westward to Fort Sill ale teFtHe 
Civil War), was soon one of the principal road center in Indian Territory. 
And the third week in September 1858 saw yet another link forged in its 
transportation chain. The first Concord arrived from the east on the fabled 
Butterfield Overland Mail Route from St. Louis to San Francisco, the country's 
first trans-continental mail service. It remained in operation until 1861.

Boggy Depot was so named officially by the Post Office Department in 
1849. A boundary treaty in 1855 placed it in the Choctaw Nation. The town's 
church, built in 1840 by Rev. Cyrus Kingsbury (the so-called "Father of the 
Choctaw Missions" who came from Mississippi with that tribe in the 1830s), 
served as capitol of the Choctaw Nation in 1859 when Chief Basil LeFlore 
ordered the national council to meet there temporarily during a factional 
dispute.

Federal forces abandoned southern Indian Territory at the start of the 
Civil War and the Confederates promptly made Boggy Depot a military post 
and major commissary depot. A confederate banner floated from a flagpole in 
the center of town for four years and there is a long row of Confederate 
graves in the town's cemetery. One of the first Masonic lodges to be estab­ 
lished in present Oklahoma was started here by Rev. J. .S. Murrow about''

One final Boggy Depot contribution to Oklahoma, however, has outlasted 
all her physical structures: the state's name. Chief Alien Wright (1826-95) 
served two terms as principal chief of the Choctaw Nation and translated 
several books into the Choctaw language. In 1866 he suggested "Oklahoma" as 
a name for the proposed Indian Territory. The word is a Choctaw phrase 
meaning "Red People" and had occurred frequently in the Treaty of Dancing 
Rabbit Creek when reference was made to the Choctaws.x \^lie najne was in common 
use after that and it was finally given officially to^klahoma Territory 
and, in 1907, to the state. Chief Wright with Rey/^Jtln^jSbij^ and pfcher 
prominent pioneers are buried in the town's

1868. In 18?2, however, the M-K-T built through this area, missing 
the town on the east. Meanwhile, "New" Boggy Depot had come into being
two miles to the south, drawing away the post office. The death knell 
for the "old" town had sounded. __ ______


